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WESTON Ref. No. 

December 19,2000 

Dean Tagliaferro 
On Scene Coordinator 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
C/O Weston Environmental ENgmeering 
One Lyman Street 
Pittsfield, Massachusetts 0 120 1 

Re: GE-PittsfieldMousatonic River Site 
Upper %-MileReach Removal Action (GECD800) 
Contingency Plan for NAPL remaining in Cell G2 

Dear Mr. Tagliaferro: 

On November 17,2000, the General Electric Company (GE) submitted a document entitled Results of 
Cell G2 NAPL Investigation and Proposal to Address Presence of LNAPL in Cell G2 to the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). This submittal presenied the results of ari investigation 
conducted to delineate the extent of NAPL encountered during sediment and bank soil removal activities 
in Cell G2 as part of the Upper %-Mile Reach Removal Action. Additionally, the submittal included a 
proposal to address the presence of coal-tar LNAPL that was encountered in Cell G2. The proposal 
involved additional excavation of the coal-tar LNAPL-impacted materials and the installation of a 
sheetpile containment barrier wall. In a December 11, 2000 letter, the EPA provided GE interim 
conditional approval for a portion of the proposal. One of the conditions required GE to submit a 
contingency plan to install a NAPL collection system andlor impermeable cap in the event that NAPL or 
NAPL-impacted sediments remain following excavation activities. Please note that given the nature of 
the LNAPL observed in Cell G2 the installation of any collection system andor impermeable cap in the 
river may have limited effectiveness. Regardless, in response to the above-referenced EPA requirement, 
this letter has been prepared to present a proposed contingency plan. 

GE's proposed contingency plan is to install an LNAPL observationirecovery well and impermeable cap 
system in the Cell G2 area if LNAPL remains following excavation of sediments to a maximum depth of 
965 feet above mean sea level (AMSL) (or to the maximum safe excavation limits). Figure 1 provides a 
conceptual design for a LNAPL observationirecovery well and impermeable cap system. Please note that 
since this is a contingency plan and the location and extent of any LNAPL remaining is not known, the 
construction of the proposed system may be subject to field modification, in consultation with EPA. 

Specifically, in the, event that LNAPL remains following excavation activities, a gravel layer will be 
constructed in the impacted area sloping upward towards the containment barrier sheeting and the 
observationirecovery well (see Figure 1). This system is similar in construction to the system used in Cell 
C except that the gravel layer and geomembrane will be sloped to allow potential LNAPL to migrate 
upward toward the containment barrier and the observationirecovery well. For the observationlrecovery 
well, an approximate one-foot length of 0.090-slotted screen will be placed into a minimum I-foot of 
washed gravel. Following placement of the washed gravel. a 60-mil high-density polyethylene (HDPE) 
liner will be placed. 
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In the event that the HDPE liner is required to be placed in sections, these sections will be welded in 
accordance with 
manufacturer specifications and/or recommendations. Also, the HDPE liner will be sealed around the 12- 
inch diameter protective casing and along the sheeting using an approximate 2-foot wide, 1-foot thick 
layer of grout. The remaining sides of the liner will be keyed into the subgrade and grouted. The 
protective casing, along the recovery pipe, will stick up approximately 2 feet above final grade. The 
protective casing will be anchored to the sheeting using pipe collars and plugged at the top to protect the 
pipe during a high flow event. The annulus between the 12-inch diameter protective casing and the 6-
inch diameter pipe will be filled with grout. Isolation layer material will be placed above the HDPE and 
the remainder of the area will be restored in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Upper %-Mile 
Reach Removal Action Work Plan (BBL, August 1999). 

In the event that such an observation/recovery well is installed, GE will initially monitor the well for the 
presence of NAPL on a weekly basis. If NAPL is observed at a thickness of 0.5 feet or greater, it will be 
manually removed. Following 6 weeks of monitoring, the results will be evaluated and GE will propose a 
schedule for additional monitoring andor recovery to the EPA for approval. 

Please call with any questions or comments. 

Very truly yours, 

Andrew T. Silfer 
GE Project Coordinator 

Enclosure 

cc: M. Barash, DO1 N. Harper, MA AG 
R. Bell, MDEP W. Horne, GE 
J. Bernstein, Bemstein, Gushner & Kimmel H. Inglis, EPA 
J. Bieke, Shea & Gardner S. Messur, BBL 
M. Carroll, GE K.C. Mitkevicius, USACE 
T. Conway, EPA B. Olson, EPA 
J.L. Cutler, MDEP S. Steenstrup, MDEP 
Mayor G. Doyle, City of Pittsfield A. Thomas, GE 
C. Fredette, CDEP D. Veilleux, Weston 
A. Giedt, NOAA A. Weinberg, MDEP 
R. Goff, USACE D. Young, AlJA EOEPl 
S. Gutter, Sidley & Austin Public Information Repositories 

GE Internal Repositories 
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